HOCKEY CLUB INC



2009 ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee Members	3
Life Membership	
Life Members	4
20 Year Medal Recipients	
Lee-Ann PerryPresidents Report	6
Treasurers Report	
Men's Report	
Ladies Report	10
Junior Boy's Report	12
Junior Girls Report	14
Trophy Winners	
Representative Players	18
Team Results	24

Committee Members

Patron: Jenny Tidey

President: Jacqui Brodin/Ian Harcla

Treasurer: Ann King/Ian Harcla

Secretary: Ann King

Assistant Secretary: Belinda Urquhart

Volunteer Manager: Vacant

MENS

Vice President:Jim MoloneyTreasurer:Jim HamilitonSecretary:lan Catherall

LADIES

Vice President: Christine Blanchard

Turf Treasurer: Helen Hill

Grass Treasurer: Fiona McQueen

BOYS

Vice President: Karyn Argent Kaaren Lane

Secretary: Nicole Coulsen-Esam

GIRLS

Vice President: Kathy Mehonoshen

Treasurer: Kaaren Lane Secretary: Narelle Gherke

CLUB CAPTAINS

MENS: Ben Smith Jane Newman

Life Membership

It is with great pleasure to announce that Life Membership of KWSHC has been awarded to Alyson Aleksic and Allan Kerr.

Alyson Aleksic

Alyson Aleksic (nee Tidey) joined the Club in 1976, the year in which she co-coached the Club's first senior ladies team with her mother, Jenny Tidey. She went on to play in the top division of women's hockey in Brisbane and achieved representative honours. Alyson was also Club Captain in 1995.

Alyson also achieved top honours in umpiring when she was awarded her Australian Badge in 1997. She continues to umpire today and assisted the Club with its junior girls umpire development in 2009.

In recognition of her outstanding and long service Alyson Aleksic has been elected Life Member for the 2009 year.

Allan Kerr

Allan joined the Club in 1976 as a junior player. During his many years with the Club he has been a junior boys coach and selector. But it has been during his last 4 years that he has made a special contribution by coaching the top junior girls team – J1 – to 4 consecutive grand finals, winning 3 of them.

Allan has been heavily involved with Club affairs for many years but especially in the last few years as his daughters have followed in his footsteps and he has supported them and their love of the sport of hockey.

In recognition of his outstanding and long service Allan Kerr has been elected Life Member for the 2009 year.

Life Members

1982: Mavis Jones

1983: Jim Woods

1984: Greg Shirvington

1985: Keith Tidey

1986: Nancy Mc Donald

1989: Mel Taylor

1990: Jenny Tidey

1993: Eric Jones, Brenda Williams

1994: John Kerr, Joan Woods

1995: Judy Keen

1997: Duncan Davis

1999: Elaine Badini

2000: Helen Hill

2001: Ian Harcla

2003: Bill Hill

2004: Brian Williams

2005: Robyn Leece

2006: Diana Young, Rhonda Bentley

2007: Jan Hamilton

2008: Glen James

2009: Alyson Aleksic, Alan Kerr

20 Year Medal Recipients

2006:

Alyson Aleksic Andre Antony Ajit Bhullar **Greg Buzza** Shane Carroll **Arthur Davis** Karen Davis Jan Hamilton Glen James Ian Jones Alan Kerr **Lorraine Morris** Ian Murray Michelle O'Brien Bruno Rossaro Piero Rossaro Doug Ward Diana Young

2007:

Lee-Ann Perry Caeleigh Hancock Peter Beaton

2008:

Alan Gough

2009:

Robert McDonald Wendy LaChuisa Jim Hamilton Danielle Phillips

Presidents Report

2009 was a great year for Kedron Wavell Services Hockey Club. It had its successes, some setbacks and a lot of challenges which, I am glad to say, a lot of people put up their hand to help out. Some offers were not taken up due to focus of effort being elsewhere but do not despair we will get to you so please maintain your support for your Club – its future is in your hands!

At the start of the year we had our first setback in the loss of a great Club supporter in Jacqui Brodin, our Club President. Jacqui has been a major contributor to our Club, the United joint venture and Brisbane hockey. Together with Terry, they put in a large amount of work during last year and the upheaval caused by the demise of ShawSportz. Jacqui, Terry and Hayley, we hope your new future in North Queensland will be rewarding to you all. All the best!

Burringbar Park

Even after much lobbying by our Management Committee and with the support of our local Councillor, Fiona King, for our Club to run Burringbar Park, the Brisbane City Council decided early in the year to licence the Burringbar Park precinct to the Brisbane Hockey Management Group (BHMG). BHMG was formed as a joint venture between our Club, Brisbane Hockey Association and Brisbane Women's Hockey Association. All three organisations have appointed two representatives to the Board thus giving us an equal vote with BHA and BWHA.

We will continue to work with BHA and BWHA to ensure a quality facility for our sport is maintained and to ensure it remains the **Home of Kedron Wavell Hockey**.

BHMG decided to maintain our running of the canteen with a new profit share arrangement so that the canteen meets its costs and makes a contribution towards the running and development of Burringbar Park. We negotiated with BHMG to ensure our Club members received a reasonable return for the considerable effort they put in to running the canteen. Negotiations for 2010 will commence soon. BHA and BWHA obviously want a larger share to go towards running the precinct but we will not sell our members efforts short.

Demands for the use of the turf field are growing especially from Northside Clubs. Your Management Committee has been able to preserve the number of training hours on Wednesday nights but some junior training may have to start earlier to accommodate another club using the field. The division of training times by BHMG was equitable amongst all clubs but it was a difficult task given the lack of facilities on the northside.

BHMG will be working with all levels of Government to secure financing for the replacement of the turf at Burringbar Park given it is close to the end of its useful life. We hope to replace the turf at the end of the 2010 winter season and lay out a development plan for the precinct for the next 2 to 5 years. I would seek your support in lobbying your local members to support our efforts in making the Home of Kedron Wavell Hockey also the centre of hockey on the northside of Brisbane.

Our New Club Sponsor



It was with great pleasure that I announced during the year that our Club had entered into a sponsorship agreement with the Kedron Wavell Services Club for the next three seasons. The Services Club has been a great supporter of our Club for many years and their financial support will be welcome to assist with members costs in playing our great sport and in developing our sport in our local area. Along with the sponsorship we will continue to run raffles at the Services Club to gain further funds for junior development and to show our support for our major Club sponsor. Please continue to support these raffles and our major sponsor Kedron Wavell Services Club – a great club for the Kedron Wavell community.

New Club Colours

We are in the process of finalising our new Club uniforms for next year. We hope to table the designs and colours at our AGM on 26 November 2009. A major component of our new sponsorship will be used to fund the uniforms so as to keep costs to our members and supporters to a minimum.

2010 - A new Era for Kedron Wavell Hockey

2010 will be the commencement of a new era for Kedron Wavell Hockey and we will be in fine shape to meet the challenges which lie ahead. After great work from all our supporters and volunteers we will commence the year in good shape financially which will be aided by our new sponsorship from the Services Club.

We are also in a great position with our membership both in terms of players and supporters and volunteers. This is the spirit of our Club. Our supporters, volunteers and parents have got us through many challenges in the past and must continue to do so in the future to maintain our successes. Please continue to be generous with your offers of support.

We will also have many challenges for the future including:

- The establishment of a strong leadership group for the next decade. The Club needs to maintain a strong leadership group to run our sport both on and off the field. The Committees for each section and the Club as a whole need continuous invigoration with new people and new ideas. Parents and senior players you need to step up and ensure Kedron Wavell continues to be a dominant Club in Brisbane hockey.
- We need to continue to develop and promote our sport within the Brisbane community. Funds from our sponsor will be used for these promotional purposes as well as developing our next generation of players, coaches, umpires and Club leaders. Members' ideas and support will be required here.
- Communication is a vital function of any club including ours. Focus will be required in 2010 to update our website and use it as our communication hub. A number of people put up their hands to help us out in this area in 2009 but unfortunately other priorities distracted us from this important task. I look forward to taking up the same and new offers to improve our website and the communications within the Club.
- We need to continue to spread the load. We welcomed new people into our sections' Committees this
 year and this must continue in order to spread an increasing workload. Everyone is busy with work,
 families and other important tasks. But if more can find a few hours to put into their Club then the load will
 be spread and we can all find more time to enjoy our sport.

I would like to conclude by thanking the Club's Management Committee for their tireless work and commitment to our Club, especially to Ann King our Secretary who was honoured by receiving the Patrons Trophy this year (and justifiably so), to Karyn Argent for her never ending work on the canteen, to our new Club Minute Secretary, Belinda Urquhart, to our tireless Club worker Helen Hill who was always there to help out, and finally, to our Patron, Jenny Tidey, who stepped in when we needed her guidance and support this year.

I have been honoured to have been part of this Club for over 40 years and I know that if the Club maintains its spirit then these challenges will be easily met and all our members will continue to enjoy the great sport of hockey.

Your very proud Club President

Ian Harcla

Treasurers Report

The Club has ended 2009 with a very pleasing surplus in comparison to the outcomes of the last few years. As can be seen from the following table the surplus resulted mainly from the canteen revenues and fundraising/sponsorship monies. All Club members who contributed to these revenue raising activities should be pleased with their efforts. In particular I wish to acknowledge the efforts of the treasurers from each of the sections for working so hard in ensuring all members were financial during the year. It is always a difficult task to collect fees especially in tough economic times like we have just been through.

	Amount	Comments
Total Income	278,612	Increase of \$36,906 on 2007
- Player Fees	110,370	Decrease of \$3,234
- 6-a-Side	34,712	Increase of \$4,551
- Fundraising, donations, etc	50,976	Increase of \$33,641
Total Expenses	213,133	Decrease of \$28,087
- Player Fees	103,394	Increase of \$39,625
- Turf/Grass Hire	31,321	Decrease of \$30,799
- Fundraising, Junior Development	11,382	Increase of \$3,880
Surplus	\$65,479	Increase of 64,993

The canteen generated a net income of \$24,853 after taking into account the additional costs for our canteen co-ordinator this year. Please note, a profit share payment to the Brisbane Hockey Management Group of approx \$2,000 and electricity costs are still outstanding at year end.

The surplus generated this year is testimony to the hard work put in by so many volunteers within the Club. The sponsorship provided by the Kedron Wavell Services Club has also assisted with the surplus. These funds were used to support all sections of the Club and will also be used for junior development activities in 2010 and to offset some of the costs for our new uniforms next year.

In closing, as mentioned in previous audit reports, the Club needs to continue to monitor its cash flow position to ensure it has sufficient funds to make payments as they fall due. While the Club finds itself in a healthy financial position sections must continue to closely monitor their expenditures to ensure this position is maintained. I would especially like to thank **Ian Harcla** for doing all the hard work in maintaining the accounts, as I have had insufficient time due to work commitments.

Ann King

Treasurer

Men's Report

Season 2009 was a mixed year for the senior men's teams with one of our BHL 5 teams being removed we found ourselves less stressed to fill every team. Some of our teams in 2009 improved their final positions on the previous year and some fell down the final ladder. Our United teams also had a mixed year, the results for our teams are as follows;

Of our three teams that made the finals this year, only the BHL5 team went on to win the Grand Final, with them winning the Presidents, Memorial and Minor Premiership in the process. This was also the third consecutive time that our BHL5 has won the grand final, so a special congratulations needs to be made to them. These results were also an improvement for our BHL2 and BHL4 teams from 2008, but our BHL3 and VHL1 teams didn't do as well.

Whilst the season for our BHL1 side was disappointing overall, one major bright spot was that Adam McClelland was the highest scorer in the competition. This form led him to earn representative honours in the Brisbane Premier League 1 side, and a call up into the Queensland Blades Squad since the season finished.

I would also like to thank the tireless volunteers who make a season possible, they are

Jim Hamilton - Men's Treasurer
Ian Catherall - Men's Secretary
Ben Smith - Men's Club Captain
Rod Coate - BHL3 Coach
Glen James - BHL4 Coach

Glen James - BHL4 Coach
Andre Antony - BHL5 Coach
Steve Voykin - VHL1 Manager
Brian Williams - VHL2 Manager

I would also like to offer a special thank you to the Kings (Ann, Pete and Tom), for all of their advice and help during the year. I look forward to seeing everyone back in 2010.

MENS COMMITTEE

Vice President: Jim Moloney Treasurer: Jim Hamilton Secretary: Ian Catherall

Ladies Report

The ladies section fielded 9 teams in the BWHA competition in 2009: four turf teams, three grass teams and two masters teams.

Turf

There were teams in Divisions 1, 2, 3 and 4 and both Monday Masters 1 and 2.

Nikki Taylor continued to coach the Division 1 team and this year, under Nikki's skilful coaching, saw the girls reach fifth position – unfortunately though they were defeated in the preliminary final. An extremely high number of representative commitments saw the Division 1 team rarely play together this year. Nikki will continue with the Club for another season and we look forward to developing the Division 1 team and improving on this year's performance.

Divisions 2 and 3 made preliminary finals and Division 4 and Monday Masters 1 made semi finals but unfortunately were not able to proceed any further. Monday Masters 1 also won the Presidents Cup. Monday Masters 2 made the grand final but were beaten on the night.

Overall, turf results this year have improved on last year. Effective coaches and committed players have worked together for good results.

Leigh McCormick won Best and Fairest for Kedron Wavell in Division 1. Nikki Taylor again won the BWHA Highest Coaching Honours Award. Congratulations to all teams, players, coaches and managers.

Grass

We only fielded three grass teams this year, down once again by one team from last year. We elected to nominate DP1 and DP2 and BWHA moved our DP5 team to DP3. This proved to be more than a challenge for this team but they still managed to make it to the semi finals. There were also several severe injuries to key players which prevented the team from being competitive at the end of the season.

DP1 made the grand final but unfortunately were beaten on the day.

Danielle Phillips was awarded the BWHA Best and Fairest Award for DP2.

Jane Newman and Dion Harrison received their umpire badges after a big commitment to umpiring this year. Thanks to all umpires for their commitment and achievements.

Representative Players

A number of players from the ladies section played as representatives of Brisbane, Queensland and Australia and these are listed in another section of this report.

Special mention is made of Marnie Hudson from Division 1 who was selected in the Australian Junior World Cup team which travelled to America. Other Australian selections were Jasmine Larosa who made the Under 16 Australian Schoolgirls team and Jamie Stone who is a shadow in the same team. Congratulations to these ladies on their achievement this year and to all those who achieved representative status.

Club Captain

This year the Club Captain was both a grass and turf player (DP1 and MM2). Jane Newman performed her duties with enthusiasm and was a good players' representative. Thanks for a great job.

Twenty Year Medals

This year, Wendy La Chiusa and Danielle Phillips celebrated their 20 year anniversary with the Club – congratulations Wendy and Danielle.

Canteen and Umpiring

The Club continued with the canteen management this year. The ladies section undertook their responsibilities as required and for that management is grateful. The funds raised here help keep fees down and all ladies carried out their rosters without question or complaint. Thanks so much for your co-operation in this.

BWHA continued with the system of self umpiring on grass from DP3 down. This was introduced last year and we agreed to continue to see if it could work. Unfortunately, it has not been successful and Club management has written to BWHA to withdraw support for this system. BWHA management has advised that self umpiring will not occur in 2010.

A special thanks to all players who carried out their umpiring duties. It is acknowledged that many people do not enjoy umpiring but it is a duty that we all need to carry out. Many hands make light work so the more that people help out, the less we all have to do!

Some changes will be put in place from 2010 to ensure that all players are allocated umpiring. This was the system for many years but over the last few years a few dedicated umpires have carried the load for the Club. In order to develop umpires and give all players a chance to umpire, each player will be allocated at least two umpiring spots each season. Umpires, badged and non badged, will also be paid. This will see a small increase in fees but should help to improve the standard of umpires in the Club.

Volunteers

A huge thanks is also made to all those who volunteered this year to lighten the load within the Club. As with last year, particular thanks to Bill and Helen Hill for their technical bench and management assistance and to Karyn Argent for her work in the canteen.

Also thanks to my faithful band of helpers this year – Jane Newman, Kate Oudenryn, Fiona McQueen and Donna Dodson. Special mention also needs to be made of Jenny Tidey who provided advice and comments any time I asked.

To coaches and managers, also a huge thank you. My job is made much easier if I can communicate easily with all of you and I am grateful for your assistance when needed.

Christine Blanchard Ladies Vice President

Junior Boy's Report

The boys section fielded 6 teams in the BHA competition in 2009. We also field U9 & U 7 teams in the BWHA competition at Rasey Park. We have 2 combined teams this year being J1 & J2 with South West United. The full Kedron Wavell teams were in J1, U13, 2 x U11. The competitions were played this year with all teams making a the finals. After all the round games the teams were split in to Division 1 & Division 2 and then the finals were played.

J 1

The J1 Kedron Wavell Boys this year was coached by Adam McClelland and Managed by Rowan Argent. The joined KW/SWU team was coached by Ryan (SWU) and then taken over by Howard Rowland half way through the season. The J1 KW team finished 2nd on the ladder & lost in the preliminary final against Labrador & the KW/SWU team lost in the 1st semi final to KW. Overall a great effort by all the boys.

J 2

Our J2 boys this year joined with the SWU for the season. This team was coached by Jan Hamilton with assistance from Paul Mason. Most of the J2 boys were either fist year J's or still U13 players. It was a very tough year for the boys, but they showed their strength on the field in this team.

Under 13

The 13 boys had a very young team this year, it was coached by Kerri-Ann Stevenson, and she did a great job coaching the boys. The competition was hard as all teams played against each other for all the round games and then split into 2 divisions for the finals. The teams came 6th on the ladder and lost in the preliminary final.

Under 11

Both under 11 teams performed very well during the season. The Red team coached by Ian Reynolds ended up 7th on the ladder and went through to win the grand final against Redcliffe. Congratulation to the boys on a great game. The Blue team was coached by Ethan Triggell and came 9th on the ladder and lost in the semi-final to the Red Team. A great effort by all the players and coaches for a very successful season.

U9 & U7(Modified)

Our U9 boys & girls had a great season this year in the BWHA competition, we fielded all Junior Boys and Girls together at the Rasey Park venue. The kids are not in a points competition, to encourage the game rather than winning/losing. But I have been told they won most of their games.

Representative Players

Once again Kedron-Wavell players were prominent in Brisbane and Queensland team selections. Congratulations to all players on their selections. The boys played extremely well while away at the State and National Championships.

Also we have had some Queensland representative named for the off season indoor season. Best of luck to the boys while they are away in December 2009 & January 2010.

Umpires

A big thanks to all the BHA badged umpires who umpired every week during the season. It is a huge commitment both for the boys & their parents to get them to the games to umpire each week as well as play. Many of the boys umpired both Juniors & Senior games during the season. Also a big thanks to our members who also umpired all our Minkey & U9 & U11 games.

Stick with Hockey

It was noted with some concern that the number of players in our Junior boys competition during the season. In an attempt to address this alarming trend, the Boys' VP and Girls' VP collaborated with Atlas Sports and Promotion to develop a school based program. We hope to go into a number of schools this year to attract more players into hockey. We have received a sponsorship from the Kedron Wavell Services Club to help with Junior development. We plan on using this to get involved in the schools.

Canteen and Fundraising

With Shawsportz no longer managing the Burringbar facility, there was a much greater commitment needed in order to run the canteen this year. Parents' willingness to support the club by doing canteen duties was greatly appreciated by the committee. There have been a few ups and downs during the season with the canteen, but the revenue the canteen has generated will help the club in the future.

The Chocolate Drive was a huge success which ensured that we exceeded our fundraising target for 2009.

The raffle at the RSL was well supported again this year. There were a few ups and downs with members not turning up for the raffles. I understand it is difficult with a family but our commitment to these raffle secures our Junior Development funds from the RSL. The raffles are done all year round the money given to us by the RSL goes to Junior Development. I would like to thank the senior men & women for their continued support for the RSL raffles Hopefully the Development funds will ensure that our boys go through into senior ranks with the best skills & ability of any club.

Boy's Committee

The boys committee changed this year with Kim Gunner (Secretary) resigning her position. I would like to thank Kim for all her hard work over the last few years; she has helped our new Secretary, Nicole Coulson – Esam transition into the position. Sandy Treeby (Treasurer) also resigned her position this year and I would like to thank her for all her work over the last 2 years. As we had no nominations for the Treasurer's position, Kaaren Lane (Junior Girls Treasurer) kindly offered to help the junior boys section. Big thanks to Karin for all her work with Junior boys, we could not have done it without her.

I strongly urge anyone who can help out in the 2010 season, without a full committee it is very difficult to run the Junior boys successfully.

Management Committee

I would like to thank the Management committee for the continued support they give each section during the season. There are a number of people that our members do not realize take on these positions & probably never see. Ian Harcla (President), Ann King (Secretary/Treasurer), Belinda Urquhart (Minutes Secretary). Christine Blanchard (Ladies VP), Jim Maloney (Men's VP), Kathy Mehonoshen (Girls VP). The work they do behind the scene is greatly appreciated and without them we could not run our club successfully.

I can only encourage all members to take on a position on the Management committee or the section committee. Many hands make light work.

I have decided that this year will be my last year on the Management committee at Kedron Wavell, I have been on the Kedron Wavell committee as Boys VP for the last 3 years & as Boys treasurer for 2 years before that. I have been running six-a-side for the last 5 years as well as canteen convener for the last year. I have enjoyed my time on this committee but feel it's time for a break. I would like to thank the management committee and all Kedron Wavell members for your support over the years.

Karyn Argent Junior Boys Vice-President

Junior Girls Report

Kedron-Wavell Girls section was awarded the Taxation Shield as the BEST CLUB IN BRISBANE in 2009. This is the first time since 1999 that KW has won this prestigious shield. Points are allocated on where all teams (J Turf, J Grass, U13 and U11) finish in each grade. Points are then totalled and divided by the number of teams to get an average. So this trophy is evidence of how all our teams have contributed to a fantastic season.

This year an impressive 15 teams were fielded in BWHA competition with multiple teams being fielded in all age groups.

Junior Turf and Grass

For the first time all 4 junior girls' teams made the Grand Finals with JT3 and JG3 winning joint premierships. JT1, JT3 and JG3 were all minor premiers. Special congratulations to our dedicated team of coaches: Allan Kerr, Candice Luff, Sonya Taylor, Steve Lynch, Chris Howell and Grendell Antony.

Under 13 A and B

Our U13 teams had a very good season under the guidance of Jo Cuxson, Regie Fisher and Andrew Blanchard. They were a young group of girls who have built excellent skills during the season and should achieve great things in 2010.

Under 11 A, B and C

Our Under 11 teams performed very well throughout the season with U11A's making the grand final and U11B's the semis. Our U11C team consisted primarily of girls who had never played hockey and came through the very successful Learn Hockey program run at the start of the year. Many thanks for the tireless efforts of the U11 coaching staff consisting of Glen Donald, Dave Scott (ably assisted by Peter James) and Ken Dohnt.

Under 9 and Under 7 Rookies

2009 was also the first year that mixed teams of girls and boys played in the BWHA U7 and U9 Rookey Hockey competition. Kedron-Wavell Girls and Boys sections combined to field teams in the competition. It was very successful with coaches and parents being very satisfied with the new format. We fielded 3 teams in each of U7 and U9. Once again the patience and dedication of their coaches is very much appreciated. Coaches for U7: Tony Robertson, Jamie Wright, Carly Spencer and Anna Mehonoshen. Coaches for U9: Glen Guy, Ian Smith, Lesley Anderson and Tessa Long

Representative Players and Coaches

Kedron-Wavell Girls were dominant in representative teams this season. Special recognition of the outstanding achievement of Jasmine Larosa who was selected in the Australian U16 schoolgirls teams. Jasmine and Tegan Kerr were selected to play for Queensland schoolgirls and U15 Queensland. Courtney Kerr was selected to play for Queensland U13.

35 girls (30% of all girls' players) were in Brisbane representative teams with 16 players selected for Brisbane 1, 6 for Brisbane 2, 8 for Brisbane 3, and 5 for Brisbane 4.

Also this year two of our young coaches were recruited to coach representative teams. Congratulations to Candice Luff (U13 Brisbane 4) and Tessa Long (U11 Brisbane 3).

Umpires

Sheila Lynch coordinated the umpiring roster this year and she performed this duty with commendable diligence and reliability. Thanks go to all the girls and their parents for willingly completing their umpiring duties.

Development Programs

Umpires

As a result of the generous support of Kedron Wavell Services Club we have been able to run an umpire development program in 2009. This program was run by Alyson Aleksic with the support of Sheila Lynch. The program has been very successful with 10 girls being mentored in a total of 35 games. We also had 11 girls umpire a total of 96 games during the season. All of these girls are now accredited for the community level Hockey Australia umpiring qualification.

Learn Hockey

With the funding support of Queensland Government Dept of Sport and Recreation we ran a Learn Hockey program at the start of the year. 47 young people enrolled in the program with 15 of them signing up to play for KW teams in 2009. Of the remainder who did not sign up conflicts with other sporting commitments was sighted as the main reason. All parents reported that their children enjoyed and learned a lot from the program, that it represented good value money, and that they would recommend the program to other parents.

Canteen and Fundraising

This year Stacey Hutana was the canteen coordinator and she did an excellent job with canteen rosters running smoothly and very few "no-shows". Thanks to all parents who did their canteen duties so diligently. Next year we will have to focus on making sure that the raffle ticket duty is so successful.

The Chocolate Drive was a huge success which ensured that we exceeded our fundraising target for 2010.

The Downey Park and Rasey Park Cake Stall was very well supported by parents this year with many generous donations of home-baked products. Once again Kelli Crawford did a superb job of coordinating the stall.

Girls' Committee & volunteers

The Girls' committee had a very stable year which was probably just well considering the upheaval in the previous year. My thanks to Narelle Gehrke (Secretary), Kaaren Lane (Treasurer), Kellie McGrory (Uniforms), Kelli Crawford (Cake Stall) and Julie McCarthy (Photos).

Of course none of this would be possible without the vital support and reliability of our team managers. Without them we would not be able to perform our duties.

Management Committee

2009 has been a difficult year for management with some position being unfilled – particularly treasurer. The Girls section is extremely grateful to Ian Harcla for stepping in to the role of Club President and his commendable diligence towards mastering the intricacies of MYOB. Well done also to Ann King for undertaking the positions of club secretary and treasurer. On behalf of girls players and their families I would like to extend a special thank you for the professional and dedicated manner the committee has pursued a favourable outcome for our club.

Kathy Mehonoshen
Junior Girls Vice-President

Trophy Winners

SENIOR PERPETUAL TROPHIES

Patrons Trophy - Best Club Person - Ann King

Presidents Trophy – Service to the Club by a Player
Senior Male – Grendell Antony
Senior Female – Kate Oudenryn

The Jones Family Trophy - Most Valuable Division 1 Ladies Player - Kylie Neal

Umbro Trophy Senior Men - Most Promising Senior Male Player - Justin Morris

Brisbane Trophy Centre Trophy - Most Promising Senior Female Player - Marnie Hudson

McDonald Family Trophy -

Most Effective Forward – Men – **Adam McClelland** Most Effective Back – Men – **Scott MacCauley**

Juanita Hall Trophy - Most Effective Forward - Ladies Turf - Alyssa Kerr

Eric and Mavis Jones Trophy -

Most Effective Forward – Ladies Grass - **Carlene Southgate** Most Effective Back – Ladies Grass – **Megan Rollo**

United Hockey Best & Fairest - Adam McClelland

United Hockey Coaches Award – Ash Randall

MENS TEAM TROPHYS 2008

MOST CONSISTENT PLAYER

Division 1	Mark Limbrick
Division 2	Justin Morris
Division 3	Josh James (Best Team Player)
Division 4	Scott MacCauley
Division 5	John Dexter
Veterans Division 1	Brett Jennings
Veterans Division 2	Ajit Bhullar

LADIES TEAM TROPHIES 2009

MOST CONSISTENT PLAYER

Division 1	Jodie Schulz
Division 2	Leslie Anderson
Division 3	Darlene Haydon
Division 4	Lindy Crawford
Monday Masters Division 1	Darlene Haydon
Monday Masters Division 2	Nikki Taylor
DP1	Jodi Harris
DP2	Alicia Leddy
DP3	Kathryn Badini

JUNIOR PERPETUAL TROPHIES

Presidents Trophy – Service to the Club by a Player
Junior Male – James Treeby
Junior Female – Anna Mehonoshen

Laurie Pitt Trophy - Most Promising Minkey or U9 Boy - Brendan Davis

Bill Brown Trophy - Most Promising Minkey or U9 Girl - Hannah Waterworth

Keith Tidey Trophy – Junior Boy Umpiring Achievement – **Sam Hamilton**

Tidey Family Trophy – Junior Girl Umpiring Achievement – Shona Lynch

Peter Deering Trophy – Best Junior Boy Goalkeeper – Mitchell Smith

Mel Taylor Trophy - Best Junior Girl Goalkeeper - Jessie Dimmick

Holmberg Trophy - Junior Team with the Best Overall Performance During the Season - JG3 Girls

City United Trophy – Most Valuable Junior Boy Player in a Final – Lewis Fossey

City United Trophy - Most Valuable Junior Girl Player in a Final - Jasmine Larosa

Senior Men's Trophy - Most Promising Junior Boy - Josh James

Senior Ladies Trophy - Most Promising Junior Girl - Maddison Lawrence

BOYS TEAM TROPHIES 2008

TEAM TROPHIES

	Most Improved	Most Improved
J1	Justin Morris	Sam Acutt
13 (1)	Scott Gunner	Matthew Kleidon
13 (2)	Lewis Fossey	Anthony Collison
11 (2)	Joseph Triggell	Matthew Linz

GIRLS TEAM TROPHIES 2008

TEAM TROPHIES

	Players' Player	Most Consistent
JT1	Aimee Holcroft	Jasmine Larosa
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
JT2	Jessie Dimmick	Kristina Cartwright
JT3	Lucy Tynan	Louise Scarce
JG3	Sarah Jones	Olivia Hodkinson
	Best & Fairest	Achievement Award
U13A	Kate Springfield	Lani Fabila
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
U13B	Zara Long	Grace Urquhart
U11A	Victoria Henderson	Ash-Lee Rantanen
U11B	Kiri Fabila	Sophie Conway
U11C	Hayley Cahill	Elizabeth Haigh

Representative Players

BOYS

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours or Award
Hayden Acutt	J1	U15 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary School Boys
Sam Acutt	J1	U18 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary School Boys
		Queensland Open School Boys
Matthew Argent	J1	U15 Brisbane 1
		U15 Queensland
		Met North Secondary School Boys
		U16 Queensland Indoor Team
Ayden Betts	J1	U15 Brisbane 2 (Captain)
Saul Bos	11	U11 Brisbane 1
Anthony Burke	J1	U15 Brisbane 3
Phillip Coote	J2	Met North Primary School Boys
Joshua Crisp	J2 /Men's Div 3	U15 Brisbane 1
·		U15 Queensland
		U18 Brisbane 3
		Met North Secondary School Boys
		U16 Queensland School Boys
		U16 Queensland Indoor Team
Elliott Fossey	13	Met North Primary School Boys
Jared Gunner	11	U11 Brisbane 1
Toby Hamilton	J1	U18 Brisbane 3
Sam Hamilton	J2	U13 Brisbane 2
		U11 Brisbane Umpire
Mark Hughes	J1	U15 Brisbane 2 (Vice-Captain)
Joshua James	J1	U18 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary School Boys
		Queensland Open School Boys
Aaron Lund	J1	U18 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary School Boys
		Brisbane Premier League 2
		Queensland Open School Boys
		U18 Queensland Indoor Team
Joshua McClelland	J1	Met North Secondary School Boys
Sam Machen	J2	U13 Brisbane 2
Dominic Machen	11	U11 Brisbane 2
Oliver Prest	13	U13 Brisbane 2
Nicholas Rowland	J1	U15 Brisbane 1
		U18 Brisbane 3
Emerson Saxil	11	U11 Brisbane 1
Jared Taylor	J1	U15 Brisbane 1
•		Met North Secondary School Boys
James Treeby	J1	U18 Brisbane 3
Joe Triggell	11	Met North Primary School Boys
Matthew Van Velden	J1	U15 Brisbane 1
Matthew Weekes	11	U11 Brisbane 2

GIRLS

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours or Award
Tahlia Blaney	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 4
Georgia Carnell	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 3
Laeticia Carr	U13A	Under 13 Brisbane 4
Riley Chisholm	JT2	Under 13 Brisbane 1
Jessica Crawford	JT3	Under 15 Brisbane 3
Sarah Crisp	JT3	Under 13 Brisbane 3
Madison Donald	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 4
Lani Fabila	U13A	Met North Primary Schoolgirls
Jaimie Fisher	JT2	Under 13 Brisbane 1
		Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
		Umpire Queensland Primary Schoolgirls
Emily Green	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 4
Victoria Henderson	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 3
CJ Hooper	JT1	Under 15 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary Schoolgirls
Gabe Hunt	JT1	Under 15 Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary Schoolgirls
Courtney Kerr	JT2	Under 13 Queensland & Brisbane 1
Tegan Kerr	JT1	Under 15 Queensland & Brisbane 1
		Met North Secondary Schoolgirls
Jasmine Larosa	JT1	Under 16 Australian Schoolgirls
		Under 15 Queensland & Brisbane 1
		Under 16 Queensland Schoolgirls
		Met North Secondary Schoolgirls
Maddison Lawrence	JT1	Under 15 Brisbane 1
		Met East Secondary Schoolgirls
Shona Lynch	JT2	Under 15 Brisbane 3
		Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
Alaiaha Maalda Elatahan	11404	Umpire Queensland Primary Schoolgirls
Aleisha Mackle-Fletcher	U13A	Under 13 Brisbane 4
Somer Marks	U13A U13A	Under 13 Brisbane 3 Under 13 Brisbane 3
Keeley McCarthy Elizabeth McGrory	U11A	Under 13 Brisbane 3
Anna Mehonoshen	JT2	Umpire Brisbane Under 13
Anna Menonoshen	JIZ	Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
		Umpire Queensland Secondary Schoolgirls
Liza Michalak	JT3	Under 15 Brisbane 3
Taylor Quirk	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 1
Margie Quill	JT1	Under 15 Brisbane 2
Ash-Lee Rantanen	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 1
Tamara Ryan	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 1
Tamara reyan	01171	Sunshine Coast Primary Schoolgirls
Miranda Scroope	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 2
Carly Spencer		Umpire Brisbane Under 13
		Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
Kate Springfield	U13A	Met North Primary Schoolgirls
Madeleine Stokes-Phillips	JT2	Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
Brooke Tainui	U11A	Under 11 Brisbane 1
Renee Taylor	JT2	Under 13 Brisbane 1
		Umpire Under 11 Southern Cross
Chelsea Turnbull	JT3	Under 13 Brisbane 2
Lucy Tynan	JT3	Under 13 Brisbane 2
Eloise Whiting	JT1	Under 18 Brisbane 2
Brittany Wilkinson	JT2	Under 13 Brisbane 1
Josephine Williams	JT3	Under 13 Brisbane 1

<u>MEN</u>

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours or Award
Samuel Acutt	BHL 3	Queensland Open School Boys
		Brisbane Open
		Brisbane U18 1
Andre Antony	BHL 5 / VHL 2	Queensland O45 3
		Queensland O65 Coach
Grendall Antony	BHL 5 / VHL 2	Brisbane O55 3
Ajit Bhullar	VHL 2	Queensland O65
		Brisbane O55 1
Kula Bhullar	BHL 1	Brisbane Premier League 2
lan Catherall	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Queensland O40 2
		Brisbane O40 2
Rodney Coate	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Queensland O40 3
	5111.0	Brisbane O40 1
Joshua Crisp	BHL 3	Brisbane U18 3
Duncan Davis	VHL 5 / VHL 2	Queensland O50 1
	5111.5 (1/111.0	Brisbane O50
John Davis	BHL 5 / VHL 2	Queensland O50 2
M (1) =	5111.4	Brisbane O50
Matthew Freeman	BHL 1	Brisbane Premier League 2
Alan Gough	VHL 2	Queensland O55 1 (And Manager)
Mantin Halaass	DIII 5 (VIII 0	Brisbane O55 1
Martin Halsey	BHL 5 / VHL 2	Queensland O45 3
Talas I I analitan	DIII 0	Brisbane O45 3
Toby Hamilton	BHL 3	Brisbane U18 3
lan Harcla	VHL 2	Queensland O50 2
la alaura I aura a	DIII 0	Brisbane O50
Joshua James	BHL 3	Queensland Open School Boys
		Brisbane Open Brisbane U18 1
Ash Jannings	VHL 1	Queensland O40 2
Ash Jennings	VILI	Brisbane O40 2
Drott Ionnings	VHL 1	Queensland O40 1
Brett Jennings	VILI	Brisbane O40 1
Jacob Jennison	BHL 1	Queensland U21 Indoor
Jacob Jennison	DITE I	Brisbane Premier League 2
		Brisbane U18 1
Aaron Lund	BHL 2	Queensland U18 Squad
Adion Edita	Briez	Queensland U18 Indoor
		Brisbane Premier League 2
		Brisbane U18 1
Jason Lund	BHL 2	Queensland U21 Indoor
Adam McClelland	BHL 1	Queensland Blades Squad
7 (444)		Queensland Development Team
		Queensland U21 Squad
		Queensland U21 Indoor
		Brisbane Premier League 1
Noel Mitchell	BHL 5	Queensland O55 2
		Brisbane O50
		Brisbane O55 2
Justin Morris	BHL 2	Queensland U21 Squad
		Queensland U21 Indoor
		Brisbane U18 1
Damien Negus	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Brisbane O45 2
Craig Pobjie	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Brisbane O40 1
Steve Sawyers	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Queensland O50 1
		Brisbane O50 1
David Todd	BHL 5 / VHL 1	Queensland O45 1

		Brisbane O45 2
Graham Taylor	BHL 3	Australian O45
_		Queensland O40 1
		Brisbane O40 1
James Treeby	BHL 3	Brisbane U18 3
Ethan Triggell	Division 2	Brisbane Opens
David Wilson	BHL 4 / VHL 1	Brisbane O40 2

LADIES

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours/Award or Position Held
Alyson Aleksic	Division 2 and MM1	Brisbane 2 Veterans Metropolitan North Primary Schools Manager Qld Primary Schools Girls Manager Treasurer Metropolitan North Primary School Hockey
Alyssa Kerr	Division 1	Qld Scorchers team 2009/10 Brisbane Scorpions Qld U21 team Brisbane Premier League 1
Amanda Little	Division 1	Brisbane Swifts Brisbane Open
Ann Maclachlan	MM1	Shadow 50+ Veterans (for Gold Coast)
Belle Davis	MM1	Qld 50+ Veterans (for Gold Coast)
Candice Luff	Division 2	Assistant Coach Brisbane 4 U13 team Student Umpire Metropolitan North Primary School Boys Team
Danielle Phillips	DP2	BWHA Best and Fairest DP2
Darlene Haydon	Division 3 and MM1	Qld 35+ Veterans Brisbane 1 Veterans
Diana Young	Coach Division 4	Competitions Committee Turf and Grass (Convenor) Veterans Selectors (Convenor)
Dion Harrison	DP2	Community Umpire badge
Hayley May	Division 2	Maryborough Open
Jacqui Day	Division 1	Qld Scorchers Squad 2009/10 Qld U18 team Qld U21 team Sunshine Coast Open Best Player - State Open Championships Sunshine Coast Secondary School U19 team
Jamie Stone	Division 1	Qld U21 Squad Brisbane Premier League 2 Qld U18 team South Coast Secondary School team Qld Secondary School U16 team Shadow Australian U16 Schoolgirls
Jane Newman	DP1 and MM2	Shadow Qld 40+ Veterans Brisbane 4 Veterans (Captain) BWHA Junior Umpire badge BWHA Judiciary Committee

Jasmine Larosa	Division 2	Brisbane 1 U15 team Qld U15 team Qld Secondary School U16 team Metropolitan North Secondary Schools Team Australian Schoolgirls U16 team
Jenny Tidey	Patron	BWHA House Committee
Jodie Schulz	Division 1	Qld Scorchers team 2009/10 Brisbane Swifts Brisbane Premier League 1 Player of Final – Brisbane Premier League
John Luff		Technical Bench Qualification
Kandice Olivieri	Division 1	Qld Scorchers team 2009/10 Qld U21 team Brisbane Premier League 1 Qld U18 team
Kate Oudenryn	DP1, DP2, DP3 and MM2	Brisbane 5 Veterans Shadow Qld 45+ Veterans
Leigh McCormick	Division 1	Brisbane Swifts Brisbane Premier League 1 Qld U18 team BWHA Best and Fairest KW Div 1
Lisa-Maree Jones	Coach Division 2	Brisbane Scorpions Co-Coach Brisbane Premier League 2 Coach BWHA Vice President BWHA U18 Selector BWHA Finance Committee
Lyana Nolan	DP3	Moranbah Open
Marnie Hudson	Division 1	Australian 2009 Junior World Cup team Qld Scorchers 2009/10 Qld U21 team
Megan Rollo	DP1	Player of the Final – DP1
Natalie Andrea	MM2	Brisbane 4 Veterans
Nikki Taylor	Division 1 Coach	Brisbane Scorpions Co-Coach Brisbane Premier League 1 Coach Qld U18 coach BWHA Highest Coaching Honours BWHA Premier League and Opens Selector (Convenor) BWHA Coaching Committee BWHA U18 Selector (Convenor)
Ray Long		Technical Bench Qualification
Rebecca Kirchner	Division 1	Qld Scorchers team 2009/10 Brisbane Scorpions Qld U21 team Brisbane Premier League 1
Regie Fisher	Junior KW Coach	Brisbane 4 Veterans
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	Qld 45+ Veterans Manager Brisbane Premier League 1 Manager Brisbane Veterans 1 Manager BWHA Uniform Officer
Samantha Edwards	Division 4	Rockhampton Open

Samantha Pavish	Division 1	Qld Scorchers Squad 2009/10	
		Brisbane Scorpions	
		Qld U21 team	
		Qld U18 team	
		Brisbane Premier League 1	
Shona Lynch	DP3	Brisbane 3 U15 team	
Stephanie Bice	Division 1	Ipswich Premier League	
		Qld U18 team	
Sue Bransgrove	Division 3 and MM1	Qld 35+ Veterans team	
		Brisbane 1 Veterans	
Tegan Kerr	Division 2	Brisbane 1 U15 team	
		Qld U15 team	
		Qld Secondary School U16 team	
		Metropolitan North Secondary Schools	
		Team	
Tessa Long	Division 2	Brisbane Open	
		Brisbane 3 U11 Southern Cross Coach	
Wendy La Chiusa	Division 4 and MM1	Brisbane 3 Veterans	

Team Results

LADIES

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
Division 1	Nikki Taylor	Bill and Helen Hill	5 th
Division 2	Lisa Jones	Sharon Pragnell	4 th
Division 3	Terry Brodin	Ian Harcla	4 th
Division 4	Diana Young	Ian Harcla	5 th
Monday Masters 1	-	Jan Hamilton	1 st
			Presidents Cup
			winner
Monday Masters 2	-	Jane Newman	2 nd
DP1	Chris Brookes	Rhonda Bentley	2 nd
DP2	Shane and Kim Abbott	Kim Abbott	8 th
DP3	Elaine Badini	Stephanie Smith	4 th

GIRLS

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
JT1	Allan Kerr		Minor premiers
			Grand finalists
JT2	Candice Luff	Therese Phillips	3rd
	Sonya Taylor		Grand finalists
JT3	Steve Lynch	Allan Crawford	Minor premiers
			Joint premiers
JG3	Chris Howell	Julie McCarthy	Minor premiers
			Joint premiers
U13A	Jo Cuxson	Chris Carr	6th
	Regie Fisher		
U13B	Andrew Blanchard	Belinda Urquhart	7th
U11A	Glen Donald	Alison Carnell	2nd
			Grand finalists
U11B	Dave Scott	Tracey Scott	4th
U11C	Ken Dohnt	Robyn Cahill	7th
		Andrea Reeves	
U9 Blue	Ian Smith	Deb Awyzio	
U9 Red	Tessa Long	Alyson Aleksic	
	Lesley Anderson		
U9 White	Glen Guy	Mel Couch	
U7 Blue	Carly Spencer	Joyce Mansell	
	Anna Mehonoshen		
U7 Red	Jamie Wright	Jo Waterworth	
U7 White	Tony Robertson	Alison Dewar	

BOYS

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
J1	Adam McClelland	Rowan Argent	2nd
J1 KW/SWU	Ryan Schultz/		4 th
	Howard Rowland		
J2	Jan Hamilton		6th
13	Kerri-anne Stevensen		7th
11 (1)	lan Reynolds		6th Div 2 Premiers
11 (2)	Ethan Triggell		8th

<u>MEN</u>

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
BHL 1	Greg Forbes	Andre Antony	9 th
BHL 2	Graham Taylor	Kerry Lund	6 th
BHL 3	Rod Coate		8 th
BHL 4	Glen James	Peter King Ann King	3 rd
BHL 5	Andre Antony	Martin Halsey	Memorial Cup Presidents Trophey Premiers - 1 st
VHL 1		Steve Voykin	5 th
VHL 2		Brian Williams	2 nd